# solaredge

# Installation manual SolarEdge EV Charger UK

Version 1.01

Translation of the original instructions



Document: V 1.01 Pages: 56 © SolarEdge Technologies | Version published: 08.2024

Customer Support
SolarEdge Technologies

https://www.solaredge.com/service/support

© KEBA 2021 Specifications are subject to change due to further technical developments. Details presented may be subject to correction. All rights reserved.

KEBA Energy Automation GmbH



# Table of contents

1	Introduction						
	1.1	Representation of safety instructions	5				
	1.2	Purpose of the document	6				
	1.3	Requirements	6				
	1.4	Intended use	6				
	1.5	Warranty	7				
	1.6	Notes on this document	8				
	1.7	Further documentation	8				
2	Safet	y notes	9				
3	Scop	e of delivery	11				
4	Desci	ription of the charging station	13				
	4.1	Front view	13				
	4.2	Rear view	14				
	4.3	Top view	14				
	4.4	Type plate	15				
	4.5	Options	16				
5	Displ	Displays and operating elements					
	5.1	LED bar	17				
	5.2	Display (optional)	17				
6	Mour	Mounting and installation instructions					
	6.1	General criteria for the site selection	20				
	6.2	Space requirements	21				
	6.3	Required tools	21				
	6.4	Mounting the charging station	22				
7	Conn	ections and wiring	25				
	7.1	Connection overview	25				
	7.2	Required tools	26				
	7.3	Power supply	26				
	7.4	Enable input X1	31				
	7.5	Switch contact output X2	32				
	7.6	Ethernet connection X3 and X4 (optional)	32				
8	Confi	guration	34				
Ū	8.1	DIP switch settings	34				

# solar<mark>edge</mark>

9	Commi	ssioning	38
	9.1	Activating/deactivating commissioning mode	38
	9.2	Perform safety checks	40
	9.3	Mount covers	40
	9.4	Attach seal	42
10	Mainte	nance	43
	10.1	Replacing the fuse	43
	10.2	Troubleshooting	44
	10.3	Display software/firmware version	44
	10.4	Software update	45
11	Suppor	t	46
12	Dispos	al	47
13	Technie	cal data	48
	13.1	General	48
	13.2	Power supply	48
	13.3	Socket / cable	49
	13.4	Ambient conditions	49
	13.5	Interfaces	50
	13.6	Optional equipment	50
	13.7	Calibratable energy meter	50
	13.8	Dimensions and weight	51
14	UKCA		53
	14.1	UKCA Declaration of conformity	53



# 1 Introduction

This manual is valid for the SolarEdge EV Charger.

The pictured devices used in this manual are visual examples. The figures and explanations contained in this manual refer to a typical device design. The devices used by you may differ in their appearance.

# 1.1 Representation of safety instructions

At various points in this manual, you will see notes and precautionary warnings regarding possible hazards. The symbols used have the following meaning:



# DANGER!

Indicates an imminently hazardous situation, which will result in death or serious bodily injury if the corresponding precautions are not taken.



# WARNING!

Indicates a potentially hazardous situation, which can result in death or serious bodily injury if the corresponding precautions are not taken.



# CAUTION!

Means that if the corresponding safety measures are not taken, a potentially hazardous situation can occur that may result in slight bodily injury.

### Caution

Means that damage to property can occur if the corresponding safety measures are not taken.



### ESD

This symbol reminds you of the possible consequences of touching electrostatically sensitive components.



#### Note

Identifies practical tips and useful information. No information that warns about potentially dangerous or harmful functions is contained.



# 1.2 Purpose of the document

This document describes the complete installation of the SolarEdge EV Charger.

This document is an extension of the supplied manuals for the SolarEdge EV Charger.

You must comply with all instructions and safety notes in the supplied manuals!

# 1.3 Requirements

This document contains information for persons with the following requirements:

Target group	Required knowledge and abilities
	Person who, due to his or her special training, expertise and experience as well as knowledge of current standards, is able to assess the work performed and the possible hazards.
	Knowledge of:
	• current valid safety information,
Electrician	• the mode of operation of the charging station,
	• the displays and operating elements of the charging station,
	• basics of network technology,
	diagnostic options,
	• systematic fault analysis and rectification,
	the setting options on the charging station.

# 1.4 Intended use

The charging station is intended for charging electric vehicles (such as electric cars). The connection of other devices (such as power tools) is not allowed.

The charging station is suitable for indoor and outdoor use.

The charging station has to be installed vertically on a wall.

The surface for the installation must be flat and suitably stable (e.g. brick wall, concrete wall). The respective national regulations must be observed with regard to the installation and connection of the charging station.

The intended use of the device always includes compliance with the environmental conditions for which this device was developed.

The charging station has been developed, manufactured, tested and documented in accordance with the appropriate safety standards. If the instructions and safety instructions described for the intended use are observed, the product will normally not pose a risk to the health of persons or damage to property.

#### Not observing the safety instructions can result in risk of death, injuries and damage to the device!

The device manufacturer assumes no liability for resulting claims!



# 1.5 Warranty

Only general maintenance work that is expressly permitted by SolarEdge Technologies may be performed. Any other tampering to the device will result in a loss of the warranty claim.



## WARNING!

## Risk of electric shock and fire hazard!

After the front part has been opened, product safety can no longer be guaranteed.

Only the covers described in the instructions may be opened. If one of the covers is sealed by a lead seal, it is not permitted to be opened by unauthorized persons. If the lead seal is broken, the device loses its specific suitability for use and may no longer be put into operation due to the resulting incorrect identifier.



Fig. 1-1: Screws on the front part

The front part **1** must not be opened. Opening the front part (4 Torx screws) will break the manufacturer's seal and void the warranty claim. In order to make a warranty claim, the customer must provide evidence that the defect in material or workmanship already existed at the time of delivery. If the manufacturer's seal is broken, this proof can no longer be provided, resulting in expiration of the warranty claim.

A device with a broken manufacturer's seal or removed lead seal may no longer be put into operation. The necessary steps must be taken for having the charging station replaced or repaired by a specialist dealer or service partner.



# 1.6 Notes on this document

The manual is part of the product. It is to be retained over the entire life cycle of the product and should be forwarded to any subsequent owners or users of the product.

The instructions contained in this manual must be followed precisely. Failure to do so can result in the creation of potential sources of danger or the disabling of safety devices. Apart from the safety instructions given in this manual, the safety precautions and accident prevention measures appropriate to the situation in question must also be observed.

# 1.6.1 Contents of the document

- Description of the charging station
- Assembly of the charging station
- Electrical installation of the charging station
- Commissioning of the charging station
- Maintenance of the charging station

# 1.6.2 Not contained in this document

- Operation of the charging station
- Troubleshooting

# 1.7 Further documentation

Manuals and additional information are available on our website:

www.solaredge.com/resource-library

# 2 Safety notes



# WARNING!

### Risk of electric shock and fire hazard!

Installation, commissioning, maintenance or retrofitting of the charging station must be performed by correctly trained, qualified and authorized electricians<sup>1)</sup> who are fully responsible for the compliance with existing standards and installation regulations.

Please observe that an additional overvoltage protection can be required by vehicles or national regulations.

Also note that some countries or vehicle manufacturers may require a different triggering characteristic of the residual current circuit breaker (Type B).

- Do not install or use a damaged device.
- A damaged charging station must be taken out of commission and repaired or replaced by a qualified and authorized electrician.
- A repair of the charging station is not permitted and may only be carried out by the manufacturer.
- No unauthorized conversion work and modifications may be made to the charging station.
- No markings (such as safety signs, warnings, wire markings, etc.) may be removed from the charging station.
- Never use faulty, worn-out or dirty charging plugs.
- Using cable lengthening sets is forbidden.
- Using adapters of any kind is forbidden.

<sup>1)</sup> Persons who, due to their special training, expertise and experience as well as knowledge of current standards, are able to assess the work performed and the possible hazards.



#### Caution

#### Possible damage to property!

- When connecting and wiring the charging station, ensure that the connection area is clean so that no foreign objects (pieces of wire, etc.) get inside the charging station.
- If protective films are present, they may only be removed after connecting the cables.
- Pull the charging cable out of the plug holder only by the plug and not by the cable.
- The charging cable must not be damaged mechanically (kinked, pinched or driven over) and the contact area is not allowed to come into contact with sources of heat, dirt or water.
- Never clean the charging station with aggressive solvents and cleaning agents, abrasive materials, spray water (garden hose, high-pressure cleaner, etc.) or excessive pressure.



# 3 Scope of delivery

The following parts are included in the scope of delivery:

#### **Basic elements**

Description	e-series	b-series c-series x-series
Charging station	1x	1x
Cable holder (for versions with charging cable)	1x	1x
Installation and configuration instructions	1x	1x
Operating Instructions	1x	1x
Drilling template	1x	1x
Keys for cylinder lock (optional)	-	Зx
RFID card (optional)	-	1x

#### Installation materials



#### Fig. 3-2: Installation materials

No.	Description	Application	Clamping range	e-series	b-series, c-series, x-series,
1	Cable gland M32x1.5	Power supply line (top/surface- mounted cable installation)	12 – 22 mm	-	1x
2	Locknut M32x1.5		-	1x	1x
3	Cable gland M16x1.5 with seal ring	Data line (top/ surface-mounted cable installation)	4 – 10 mm	-	1x



No.	Description	Application	Clamping range	e-series	b-series, c-series, x-series,
4	Cable gland M20 with seal ring	Power supply line (top/surface- mounted cable installation), in combination with reduction insert M32/M20 and seal ring	6 – 12 mm	1x	1x
5	Locknut M16x1.5		-	-	1x
6	Double-membrane seals M32	Power supply line (rear/flush- mounted cable installation)	14 – 21 mm	1x	1x
7	Double-membrane seals M20	Data line (rear/flush-mounted cable installation)	7 – 12 mm	-	1x
8	Reduction insert M32/ M20		-	1x	1x
9	Seal ring for reduction insert	Between reduction insert and housing	-	-	1x
10	Sealing cap	Terminal cover and connection panel cover	-	_	2x

# Mounting set for wall installation



## Fig. 3-3: Mounting set for wall installation

No	Description	e-series	b-series c-series x-series
1	Hangar bolts M8x100	-	4x
2	Nut ISO 10511 - M8	-	4x
3	Washer ISO 7089 - 8.4	-	8x
4	Anchors for M10; Fischer UXR-10	-	4x

# 4 Description of the charging station

# 4.1 Front view



#### Note

Depending on the design of the charging station, the charging socket or charging cable may deviate from the shape shown.



Fig. 4-4: Overview of charging station

1 Housing cover	2 RFID reader (optional)
3 LED bar	4a Permanently installed charging cable (optional)
4b Charging socket with cover (optional)	5 Holder for charging cable (optional)
6 Display (optional)	



# 4.2 Rear view



#### Fig. 4-5: Rear view

1 Mounting holes	<ul> <li>In Flush-mounting cable insertion openings M32 (for supply line)</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>I Flush-mounting cable insertion openings M20 (for control line or Ethernet)</li> </ul>	

# 4.3 Top view



#### Fig. 4-6: Top view

1 Type plate	<ol> <li>… Surface-mounting cable insertion openings M32 (for supply line)</li> </ol>
<ul> <li>3 Surface-mounting cable insertion openings</li> <li>M16 (for control line or Ethernet)</li> </ul>	

# 4.4 Type plate

The type plate is located at the top of the charging station.

# ••• Note

The type plate shown is an example. The actual data on the type plate depends on the variant.



Fig. 4-7: Example type plate

1 Manufacturer	2 Manufacturer's address
3 Product designation	4 Material number
5 Technical data	6 CE marking of conformity
7 MID type examination number	8 MID accuracy class
9 MID marking	10 Serial number
11 Production site / date	12 UKCA marking



# 4.5 Options

This chapter lists the possible options of the charging station.

## 4.5.1 RFID

The RFID reader is used for the non-contact authorization of a charging process with MIFARE cards or tags according to ISO 14443 and ISO 15693.



Fig. 4-8: RFID

1 ... RFID reader

# 5 Displays and operating elements

# 5.1 LED bar



Fig. 5-9: Segments of the LED bar

The LED bar provides visual information about the current operating status of the charging station. It consists of 4 segments (S1 to S4), which can light up or flash, together or individually, in various colors.

The LED bar is only visible with activated power supply.

# 5.2 Display (optional)

Devices with energy meters have a (dot matrix LED) display.



Fig. 5-10: Display

The display may show different information depending on the operating status (e.g., software version, IP address, authorization request). The main task, however, is to display the status of the internal energy meter. The display lights up through the housing and is only visible when the power supply is active.



# 6 Mounting and installation instructions

The charging station has to be installed vertically on a wall.

Depending on the scope of delivery, a mounting set for wall mounting is available. The mounting set is suitable for cement, brick and wood (without anchors). For other surfaces, a suitable method of installation must be selected.

Depending on the device model and/or use of special materials, the installation materials must be provided by the customer. Proper installation is absolutely necessary and lies outside of the scope of responsibility of the manufacturer.



## WARNING!

#### Risk of electric shock and fire hazard!

For installation on hollow walls, at least two mounting screws must be secured to a support element of the wall. Special hollow-wall anchors must be used for the other mounting screws. It is particularly important to make sure the substructure has sufficient load-bearing capacity.



#### Fig. 6-11: Water drainage

1 Water drainage	2 Mounting surface
3 Charging station	

#### Caution

#### Property damage due to dampness and moisture!

- The charging station must be installed and commissioned in a suitable environment. The charging station must be protected against rain, snow and dirt during the process. During an outdoor installation, the connection panel cover must not be opened when it is raining, windy, snowing, etc.
- Only a vertical installation of the charging station is permitted. The charging station must be mounted perpendicular to the mounting surface with the supplied washers—no inclination is allowed, otherwise water drainage will not be possible and that will result in damage to the device (see illustration above).
- The joints between the mounting surface and the charging station must not be sealed with silicone. Water must be able to drain off behind the charging station (see illustration above). If water drainage is not possible, this will result in damage to the device.
- Do not subject the charging station to high humidity for an extended period of time.
- If a cold charging station is brought into a significantly warmer environment (e.g. after a long transport in a cold environment), condensation may form in the device.
   Before connecting the charging station to the power supply, you must wait until the temperature of the charging station is the same as the room temperature and the moisture has evaporated again.
- The back side of the charging station has culverts through which condensation can escape to the outside. To ensure that no splash water can get into the device through the culverts, the back side of the charging station must be entirely protected.
- The charging station must always be fully and properly equipped with the supplied cable glands. Unused cable insertion openings must be screwed shut with blind plugs to ensure the necessary leak tightness.

#### Caution

#### Risk of breaking the plastic housing!

- Countersunk screws must not be used for the mounting.
- Four of the supplied washers must be used under the nuts.
- Do not tighten the mounting nuts with force. The tightening torque must not exceed 7 Nm.
- The mounting surface must be completely flat. Warpage of the housing must be prevented. If adjustment is necessary, the four remaining supplied washers must be used.

Mounting and installation instructions 20



# 6.1 General criteria for the site selection

The charging station was constructed for indoor and outdoor areas. Accordingly, it is necessary to ensure the correct set-up requirements and the protection of the device at the installation site.

The following criteria must be taken into account when selecting a location:

- Take into account the local electrical installation regulations, fire prevention measures and accident prevention regulations as well as emergency routes at this site.
- The charging station may not be installed in potentially explosive atmospheres (EX environment).
- The charging station may only be installed in stationary applications.
- Mount the charging station so that it is not located in the direct flow of passersby and so that no one can trip over connected charging cables and so that the charging cables do not cover or cross passing pedestrian and motorized traffic.
- Do not install the charging station at locations where it is exposed to ammonia or ammonia gas (e.g. in or at stables).
- The mounting surface must be sufficiently stable in order to withstand the mechanical forces.
- Do not install the charging station at locations where falling objects could damage the device (e.g. hung up ladders or automobile tires).
- The device must not be exposed to direct spray water (e.g. neighboring manual car wash facility, high-pressure cleaner, garden hose).
- The device should be protected against direct rain as far as possible to prevent icing, hail damage or similar.
- If possible, the device should be mounted protected from direct sunlight. Otherwise the charging current specification will be reduced to 16 A if the maximum permitted temperature is exceeded. The charging process can also subsequently be switched off.
- Observe the permissible environmental conditions (see "Technical data").

Observe the internationally valid installation standards (e.g. IEC 60364-1 and IEC 60364-5-52) and comply with the nationally applicable installation standards and regulations.



# 6.2 Space requirements



Fig. 6-12: Space requirement, specified in mm

If several charging stations are installed adjacent to each other, a distance of at least 200 mm between charging stations must be complied with.



#### Note

We recommend mounting the charging station (height of the charging socket) at a height of 1.2 m. Observe that national regulations can limit this height.

# 6.3 Required tools

The following tools are required for the installation:

- Drill Ø 10 mm (suitable for the wall material)
- Screwdriver/bit T25
- Socket wrench 13 mm



# 6.4 Mounting the charging station

The charging station must be prepared for this before mounting. To do this, proceed as follows:

1) Unscrew the two screws on the bottom side of the housing cover.



2) Lift the housing cover at bottom max. 1 cm (1) and then push upwards (2).



3) Loosen the four screws of the connection panel cover and remove the connection panel cover upwards.



4) Loosen the two screws of the terminal cover and remove the terminal cover upwards.



- 5) Place the charging station on a stable surface.
- 6) Using a hammer and flat-head screwdriver, gently knock out the required cable insertion openings (Surface-mounting cable installation: Cable insertion openings on the top side / Flush-mounting cable installation: Cable insertion openings on the back side)
- 7) Insert the cable glands (surface-mounted cable installation) or double-membrane seals (flushmounted cable installation) into the corresponding cable insertion openings.



The charging station is now ready for installation.

To mount the charging station, proceed as follows:

1) Mark the 4 holes (1) in the designated location on the wall. The supplied drilling template can be used for this purpose



Fig. 6-13: Drilling template

1 Mounting holes	2 Cable insertion openings
3 Cable holder holes	

- 2) If there is a cable holder, mark the cable holder holes (3).
- 3) Drill the holes and, if necessary, insert anchors in the holes.



1 Washer for adjusting	2 Rear wall of the charging station
3 Washer for nut	4 Nut
5 Hanger bolt	x 20 mm

4) Turn the hanger bolts into the hole / anchors until the thread still protrudes approx. 20 mm (x).



- 5) Pull the cable through the prepared openings on the charging station.
- 6) Tighten the cable gland from the back of the charging station. Pay attention to leak tightness!



Note

The cable gland must be tightened before wall mounting, as it is not possible to screw it on afterwards.



Fig. 6-14: Tighten the cable gland from the back

- 7) Insert the supply line so far into the cable gland that the cable sheath is visible in the connection area.
- 8) 4 of the supplied washers can be used to compensate for any unevenness and to ensure proper water flow behind the device: If necessary, place the washers (1) on the hanger bolts.
- 9) Position the charging station on the wall and secure it with the 4 washers (3) and nuts (4) to the hanger bolts (5).

The charging station is now mounted on the wall and ready for cabling.



# 7 Connections and wiring

# 7.1 Connection overview

The following illustration shows a connection overview with the covers open.



#### Fig. 7-15: Connection overview

F1 Fuse holder	1 Power connection phase conductor 1
2 Power connection phase conductor 2	3 Power connection phase conductor 3
N Power connection neutral conductor	PE Power connection grounding conductor
DSW1 DIP switch	DSW2 DIP switch
T1 Service button	LED Status LED
X1 Enable input	X2 Switch contact output
Shd Shield clamp (ground for ETH)	X3 Ethernet2 connection (RJ45)
X4 Ethernet1 connection (LSA+® terminals)	SIM SIM card slot (optional)
USB USB interface	



### WARNING!

#### Risk of electric shock and fire hazard!

- For terminals X[n], only voltages and circuits are permitted to be connected which have a safe separation to dangerous voltages (for example sufficient insulation). Supply the terminal for the switching contact output (X2) exclusively from voltage sources which have a protective extra-low voltage.
- The fuse on the fuse holder F1 must not be used to switch off the charging station. To interrupt the power supply, always use the line circuit breaker.
- The connection panel is never permitted to be left open unattended. Before leaving the charging station, the connection panel cover must be mounted.

solaredge

# 7.2 Required tools

The following tools are required for the electrical installation:

- Flathead screwdriver for supply terminals (blade width 5.5 mm)
- Flathead screwdriver for terminals X[n] (blade width 3.0 mm)
- Phillips head screwdriver PH2
- Mounting tools for cable screw connections M16 (width across flats 20 mm) and M32 (width across flats 36 mm)
- LSA+<sup>®</sup> insertion tool (optional)

# 7.3 Power supply

The power supply (supply line) must be hardwired to an existing domestic installation and comply with the applicable national regulations.

#### Mains disconnector

The charging station does not have its own power switch. The line circuit breaker of the supply line serves as a mains disconnector.

### Selection of RCD / fault-current circuit breaker

Each charging station must be connected via a separate RCD (Residual Current Device / fault-current circuit breaker). No other consumers may be connected to this circuit.

An RCD with at least Type A must be used since all EV-Charger variants have an internal DC fault current monitoring  $\geq$  6 mA.

During installation, other important issues such as "cascading" of RCD and selection of a suitable line circuit breaker must be considered.

### Dimensioning of the line circuit breaker

When dimensioning the line circuit breaker, the increased ambient temperatures in the control cabinet must also be taken into account! Under certain circumstances, this can make a reduction of the charging current specification necessary in order to increase the system availability.

The nominal current must be determined in accordance with the type plate data in coordination with the desired charging power (DIP switch settings for charging current specification) and the supply line.

 $|_{(DIP \text{ switch})} \leq |_{(circuit \text{ breaker})} \leq |_{(supply \text{ line})} \leq |_{(nominal current)}$ 

### Dimensioning of the power supply line

When dimensioning the power supply line also observe the possible reduction factors and the increased environmental temperatures inside the connection area of the charging station (see temperature rating of the supply terminals)! Under certain circumstances, this can lead to an increase of the cable cross-section and to the adaptation of the temperature resistance of the power supply line.



# 7.3.1 Cable installation

Note the following points during cable installation:

- The surface-mounted cable mounting must always be carried out before the wall installation, as it is not possible to completely screw down the cable gland afterwards.
- The supply line must be sufficiently inserted into the cable gland (surface-mounted cable installation) or the double-membrane seals (flush-mounted cable installation) so that the cable sheath 1 is visible in the connection area. Care must be taken to ensure that the diameter of the cable gland matches the diameter of the cable in order to guarantee tightness.





Correct cable gland (surface-mounted cable installation)

Double-membrane seals (flush-mounted cable installation)

- The double-membrane seals must fit cleanly against the cable sheathing.
- Make sure that the connection cables are inserted centered, straight and without pressure through the double-membrane seals to ensure seal tightness.
- The installation pipe or cable conduit with the feed line may not be screwed together in the cable gland (above) or run through the double-membrane seals (behind).
- The supply line must be routed straight through the cable gland or the double-membrane seals in compliance with the bending radii (approx. cable diameter times 10).
- For surface-mounted cable installation, the cable gland must be installed properly and screwed sufficiently tightly from the rear of the charging station, otherwise water may enter.





Fig. 7-16: Screwing from the rear

### Use of M32 cable gland (surface-mounted)

When using the M32 fitting, no additional sealing ring is necessary, as this fitting already has an integrated sealing ring.

### Use of M20 cable gland (surface-mounted)

To use the supplied M20 cable gland, the supplied reduction insert (M32 $\rightarrow$ M20) and two sealing rings must be used.

As shown below, the M32 cable entry opening must be used for this. Drilling a cable entry opening is not permitted.



Fig. 7-17: Use of the M20 cable gland with reduction insert

## Use of M16 cable gland (surface-mounted)

To use the supplied M16 cable gland, the supplied sealing ring must be used.

# 7.3.2 Connecting the voltage supply



The charging station can be connected in the following ways:

The supply terminals are designed as spring-type terminals. The handling instructions enclosed in the terminal area must be observed.

## Caution

#### Risk of breaking the terminal!

Do not press the screwdriver up, down or to the side!

To connect the supply voltage, proceed as follows:

1) Shorten the connection wires to the appropriate length (as short as possible). The protective conductor  $\bigoplus$  **PE** must be longer than the other conductors!





- 2) Strip the connection wires to approx. 12 mm. For stranded wires with fine wires, use wire end ferrules.
- 3) Insert the flat-head screwdriver (5.5 mm) into the supply terminal as shown. The screwdriver must rest on the housing.



- 4) Press the screwdriver straight into the terminal until the contact opens completely. The angle of the screwdriver changes while pressing in.
- 5) Insert connection wire into the designated terminal opening.



- 6) Pull the screwdriver out in a straight line.
- 7) Repeat these steps for the other connection wires.

The charging station is connected to the power supply.

The charging station is set to 10 A in the delivery state. In order to adapt the maximum current to the installed line circuit breaker, configuration via the DIP switches is necessary. For details, see DIP switch settings.



# 7.3.3 Electrical connection to special systems of AC power supply



## Note

The charging station can in principle be connected to TN, TT and IT systems of AC power supply networks. Pay attention to the restrictions of your vehicle manufacturer.

We recommend connecting the charging station in delta networks without upstream transformer only with single phase. A three-phase connection in delta networks should only take place with an upstream transformer ("star-delta converter").



Fig. 7-18: Connection to a three-wire IT system with 230 V

# 7.4 Enable input X1

This function is not available. Input X1 is occupied by the tamper protection sensor.



## Note

Any tampering will result in non-compliance of the device. Do not unplug the sensor.



# 7.5 Switch contact output X2



# Note

This function is not available.

# 7.6 Ethernet connection X3 and X4 (optional)



## WARNING!

#### Danger from compensation currents on shielding!

Compensation currents flowing through shielding in extended systems can lead to damage to the interfaces and hazards when working on the data lines.

Any measures (such as connecting to a shared distribution board, expanding a TN-S network, etc.) should be discussed with the person responsible for building services.



#### Note

The Ethernet1 connector X4 (LSA+<sup>®</sup>) and the Ethernet2 connector X3 (RJ45) are connected in parallel on the PCB and cannot be used at the same time. The unused connection must be disconnected if necessary (e.g. during servicing).

The Ethernet1 connection X4 is designed as a terminal block in LSA+<sup>®</sup> technology. It is recommended to implement hard-wired communication (e.g. for SmartHome or a charging network) at the LSA+<sup>®</sup> connection.

# **Color coding**

According to the cabling standard used, the contacts are wired according to **TIA-568A/B** for 100BaseT as follows:

Pin	-568A Pair	-568B Pair	-568A Color	-568B Color
1 (Tx+)	3	2	white/green stripe	white/orange stripe
2 (Tx-)	3	2	green/white stripe or green	orange/white stripe or orange
3 (Rx+)	2	3	white/orange stripe	white/green stripe
4 (Rx-)	2	3	orange/white stripe or orange	green/white stripe or green



#### **Terminal data**

Category	Wire diameter	Insulation diameter
Inflovible cable	0.36 mm (AWG 27)	0.7 – 0.75 mm
Cat 5e / Cat6 STP	0,4 – 0.64 mm (AWG 26 – AWG 22)	0.7 – 1.4 mm
Cat 6 STP	0.51 – 0.81 mm (AWG 24 – AWG 20)	1.0 – 1.4 mm
Flexible cable Cat 5e / Cat 6 STP	7 x 0.2 mm (AWG 24)	1.1 – 1.4 mm

## Preparing the connection cable

To prepare the connection cable, proceed as follows:

- 1) Strip the connection cable about 6 cm.
- 2) Knock back approx. 1 cm of shielding all over and wrap with conductive textile adhesive tape.



### Connecting the cable

To connect the cable, proceed as follows:

- 1) Fix the connecting cable at the point of the wrapped-around shielding braid in the shield clamp [K].
- 2) Tighten the shield clamp.
- 3) Clamp the wires to the terminal block **[ETH]** using an insertion tool.





# 8 Configuration

The basic configuration of the charging station is done using the DIP switches.

# 8.1 DIP switch settings

#### Caution

#### Possible damage to the DIP switches!

The DIP switches are rocker switches and not slider switches. The DIP switches must be pressed and must not be pushed under any circumstances.

#### ON/OFF position of the rocker switches

The illustration shows the position of the rocker switches for the setting ON and OFF







#### Note

Changes to the DIP switch settings only become effective after a restart of the charging station!

To restart, press the "Service button" until the first beep (approx. 1 second) or switch off the charging station for a short time via the line circuit breaker.

In the following tables, only the affected DIP switches are shown in the illustrations, others are not shown.



## Avoiding asymmetrical loads - DSW1.4 and DSW1.5

DIP switch	Function	Illustration
	Function only available for EV-Charger c-series (in standalone operation mode).	
	If communication is activated in a charging network (DSW2.5 = ON) or the charging station is operated as a client, this function is not available.	
DSW1.4 DSW1.5	The charging station constantly checks whether the connected vehicle is being charged with one, two or three phases. If a 1-phase or 2-phase charging process takes place, the charging station limits the charging current to the value set here.	P 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 F ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓
	DSW1.4 = OFF DSW1.5 = OFF = Charging at full power for 1- or 2-phase charging	Example: max. 16 A
	DSW1.4 = ON DSW1.5 = OFF = value: max. 16 A	
	DSW1.4 = OFF DSW1.5 = ON = value: max. 20 A	

Setting the amperage - DSW1.6 to DSW1.8

•••

Note

Only one maximum value, which is less than or equal to the operating current according to the type plate, can be set with the DIP switches.

DIP switch	Amperage	Illustration
DSW1.6 DSW1.7 DSW1.8	8 A Setting available from software ≥1.18.00 / firmware ≥3.10.56 (for details see "10.3 Display software/firmware version")	0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 F F
DSW1.6 DSW1.7 DSW1.8	10 A	P 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F
DSW1.6 DSW1.7 DSW1.8	13 A	P 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 F F I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
DSW1.6 DSW1.7 DSW1.8	16 A	P 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 F F I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I



DIP switch	Amperage	Illustration
DSW1.6 DSW1.7 DSW1.8	20 A	P 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 F ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓
DSW1.6 DSW1.7 DSW1.8	25 A	P 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 F ↓ 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
DSW1.6 DSW1.7 DSW1.8	32 A	P 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 F ↓ 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

#### Get IP address via DHCP server - DSW2.1 to DSW2.4

DIP switch	Function	Illustration
DSW2.1 DSW2.2 DSW2.3 DSW2.4	Not valid for EV-Charger x-series. By default, the charging process is carried out independently by the charging station without a higher- level control system. The charging station attempts to obtain an IP address via a DHCP server, if needed. This also corresponds to the basic settings for charging stations without a network connection.	<b>P I I Z 3 4 5 6 7 8 F F I I I I I I I I I I</b>

## Setting fixed IP address - DSW2.1 to DSW2.4

DIP switch	Function	Illustration
	Not valid for EV-Charger x-series.	
	If there are multiple charging stations in a network, the charging stations must be assigned an address.	
DSW2.1 DSW2.2	The last two digits of the IP address (192.168.25.xx) can be specified with the DIP switches DSW2.1 to DSW2.4. Each DIP switch has a specific value when it is set to "ON". A DIP switch set to "OFF" has the value 0.	Example for IP address
DSW2.3 DSW2.4	DSW2.1 = ON = value: 1 DSW2.2 = ON = value: 2 DSW2.3 = ON = value: 4 DSW2.4 = ON = value: 8	DSW2.1 = ON = 1 DSW2.2 = ON = 2 DSW2.3 = OFF = 0 DSW2.4 = ON = 8
	The address is obtained by adding the values of the DIP switches and increasing the result by 10: <b>Sum of the DIP switch values + 10</b> Thus, the addresses <b>11 to 25</b> can be set.	Address = 1 + 2 + 0 + 8 + 10 = 21



#### Activation of communication - DSW2.5

DIP switch	Function	Illustration
DSW2.5	Activation of communication in the charging network. This DIP switch setting must be made for each master and client charging station to enable charging station communication.	P 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 F ↓ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

## Commissioning mode - DSW2.8

DIP switch	Function	Illustration
DSW2.8	Activate commissioning mode. For details, see 9.1 Activating/deactivating commissioning mode.	P 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 F F ↓



# 9 Commissioning

The inspections and tests to be performed on the electrical connections and the correct functioning up to the acceptance of the charging station (in accordance with the locally applicable directives and laws) may only be carried out by a qualified electrician.

The following work must be carried out at the start of commissioning:

- Remove all residual installation and connection materials from the connection area.
- Check all screw and clamp connections for tightness.
- Check that all unused cable screw connections are properly sealed with blind plugs or dummy screw fittings.
- Switch on the voltage of the supply line. After 15-20 seconds, the LED bar should flash slowly blue or green. This indicates that the self-test, which is performed automatically at each startup, was successful.

The following steps are necessary during the initial commissioning:

- Activate commissioning mode
- Perform safety checks
- Deactivate commissioning mode
- Mount covers
- Attach seal

# 9.1 Activating/deactivating commissioning mode

The charging station can be put into a special commissioning mode to help facilitate the system inspection. The device carries out an extended self-test (interlocking, contactor control, current measurement, etc). Furthermore, the contactor is switched on with a time limit, to facilitate initial testing in this mode, even without a vehicle being plugged in. The charging socket is locked to prevent a cable from being plugged in.

A normal charging process is not possible in commissioning mode.



### Note

For safety reasons, the commissioning mode is indicated on the charging station by an orange display on segment S3 of the LED bar (-/-/orange/-).



## Activate commissioning mode

To activate the charging station commissioning mode, proceed as follows:

- 1) Set DIP switch DSW2.8 to ON (see DIP switch settings).
- 2) Restart the charging station by pressing the "Service button" until the first beep (approx. 1 second).

Commissioning mode is activated as soon as the LED bar lights up orange. You now have approx. 10 minutes to perform the required inspections and acceptance tests. The contactor is then deactivated and the charging station goes into an error state. This is indicated by the LED bar (white/red/red/red). By restarting via the "Service button", the commissioning mode can be reactivated.



#### Note

The energy in commissioning mode is taken into account when displaying the total energy. During the commissioning mode, the display is displayed in "watt-hours" (Wh).

## Deactivate commissioning mode

In order to be able to operate the charging station properly, the commissioning mode must be deactivated again. To do this, proceed as follows:

- 1) Set DIP switch DSW2.8 to OFF (see DIP switch settings).
- 2) Restart the charging station by pressing the "Service button" until the first beep (approx. 1 second).

The charging station starts up again in normal mode and is ready for operation.



# 9.2 Perform safety checks

Before commissioning, check the effectiveness of the safety measure(s) of the system according to the nationally applicable regulations.

Electrical systems or devices must be checked by the installer of the system or device before commissioning. This also applies for the expansion or modification of existing systems or electrical devices. It is essential that all conditions for the safety measures are observed.

For example, the following points are to be taken into account:

- The checks (continuity of the connections of the protective conductor, insulation resistance, RCD (FI) triggering current, triggering time, etc.) are to be performed.
- The measurement devices must comply with the national regulations!
- The measurement results are to be documented. A test report is to be created and saved before the check.



The tripping characteristics of the internal DC residual current monitoring is based on the product-specific standard IEC 62955. According to this standard, a trigger delay of up to 10 seconds is permitted. This circumstance may result in a negative evaluation for conventional test settings for type B residual current circuit breakers. Here, special test settings are to be used for EVSE (Electric Vehicle Supply Equipment).

# 9.3 Mount covers

Note

In order to operate the charging station correctly, all covers must be inserted and screwed tight. If necessary, a seal can be attached.

#### Caution

For correct installation of devices with a calibratable energy meter, the charge point operator must apply a lead seal.

For devices with MID approval, at least the terminal cover must be secured with a lead seal.

For devices with national approval, the connection panel cover must be secured with a lead seal.

To mount all covers, proceed as follows:



1) Insert terminal cover and tighten with 2 screws.

If necessary, the right upper screw can be provided with the supplied sealing cap (see 9.4 Attach seal).



2) Insert the connection panel cover and tighten with four screws until the tabs on the right and left sides of the connection panel cover are flush with the enclosing housing. Only then is the device properly sealed. However, a torque of 5 Nm must not be exceeded. If necessary, the right upper screw can be provided with the supplied sealing cap (see 9.4 Attach seal).



3) Hook in the housing cover at the top **1** and close it at the bottom **2**. The housing cover must glide into the guides without considerable resistance. The housing cover must be correctly seated in the housing guide on all sides.







4) Secure the housing cover with two screws at the bottom.



All covers are mounted and the charging station is ready for use.

# 9.4 Attach seal

Depending on the scope of delivery, devices are available for sealing the terminal cover and the connection panel cover. If required, these can be used to prevent or identify tampering attempts by unauthorized persons at charging stations with preconfiguration or special suitability (MID calibration validity).

To attach the seals, proceed as follows:

- 1) If necessary, open the covers of the charging station until the cover to be sealed is accessible.
- 2) Loosen the right upper screw of the cover to be sealed.
- 3) Insert the screw into the sealing cap.



- 4) Screw the screw with the sealing cap back into the cover.
- 5) Close the cover of the sealing cap.



6) Thread the sealing wire through the opening of the sealing cap over the screw and place the seal. The seal is attached. If necessary, reinstall all other covers of the charging station.



# 10 Maintenance

The hardware of the charging station is maintenance-free, but must be checked regularly by the customer or system operator for defects of the charging socket or charging plug (including charging cable) and for damage to the housing (visual inspection).

# 10.1 Replacing the fuse

Fuse	Current / Voltage	Туре	Dimensions
F1	6.3 A / 250 V	Delay with high breaking capacity (>1500A) (T) (H)	5 x 20 mm fuse

To replace the fuse, proceed as follows:

- 1) Switch off the supply voltage of the charging station.
- Remove the housing cover, the connection panel cover, and the terminal cover. If there is a seal on the connection panel cover or terminal cover, it may only be removed by an authorized person! After changing the fuse, the seal must be replaced.
- 3) Using a screwdriver, press into the opening of the fuse holder.
- 4) Screw the fuse holder counterclockwise until it automatically springs forward due to its spring.



- 5) Replace the fuse.
- 6) Press the fuse holder in and tighten it clockwise.
- 7) Mount the housing covers on the charging station again.

The fuse has now been replaced.



# 10.2 Troubleshooting

Further information (e.g. operating and configuration instructions) and contact details are available on our website:

www.solaredge.com/resource-library

# 10.3 Display software/firmware version

Depending on the device variant, the software or firmware version used can be displayed as follows.

### Web interface (x-series)

To read out the current software version, open the web interface of the respective (master) charging station. For details, see "EV-Charger x-series Configuration manual".

## Simplified web interface

To access the simplified web interface (status), a LAN network connection to the charging station is required. The end device used must be in the same network.

1) Enter the IP address of the respective charging station in a web browser.

The simplified web interface is displayed. The currently running firmware version is displayed in the "Software" line (e.g: v = 3.10.53).

# Wallbox

	Status	
<u>Status</u>	Product-ID	KC-P30-ES240022-E0R-SN:17656893 ML:17562873
• <u>Log</u>	MAC Address	00:60:b5:36:d2:eb
	Software 📑	P30 v 3.10.53 (230713-211537) : 48879 : 318.0 : 2040003
	Service Info	0:0 1:1:0:0:1120 444:554:980
	State / Seconds	charging : seconds : 2241005
	Current limit (PWM   hardware setup)	12,50A (20,8% duty cycle   16A)

Fig. 10-19: Simplified web interface (status)



# 10.4 Software update

The software of the charging station is subject to the update obligation in accordance with EU directive "Sales of goods 2019/771" and "Digital content 2019/770" and their national versions.

The software of the charging station must therefore always be kept up to date, as it may contain security updates, functional enhancements and bug fixes.

For a software update ask SolarEdge Technologies.

The information and instructions for the current software package from the associated release notes must also be observed.



# 11 Support

If you have technical problems concerning SolarEdge products, please contact us:

https://www.solaredge.com/service/support

Before contact, make sure to have the following information at hand:

- Model and serial number of the product in question.
- The error indicated on the product SetApp mobile application or on the monitoring platform or by the LEDs, if there is such an indication.
- System configuration information, including the type and number of modules connected and the number and length of strings.
- The communication method to the SolarEdge server, if the site is connected.
- The product's software version as it appears in the status screen.



# 12 Disposal

### Caution

Please observe the regulations regarding disposal of electric appliances and electronic devices!



- The symbol with the crossed-out waste container means that electrical and electronic devices including their accessories must not be disposed of in the household garbage.
- The materials are recyclable in accordance with their labeling. You can make an important contribution to protecting our environment by reusing, renewing and recycling materials and old appliances.

# solar<mark>edge</mark>

# 13 Technical data

# 13.1 General

Charge mode:	Mode 3 in accordance with IEC 61851-1 AC charging
Overvoltage category:	III in accordance with EN 60664
Protection class:	L
protection type:	IP54
Protection against mechanical impact:	IK10
Rated short-time withstand current:	< 10 kA (effective value in accordance with EN 61439-1)
Residual direct current detecting device (RDC-DD):	> 6 mA (characteristic in accordance with IEC 62955, < 10 s)
Ventilation:	If ventilation is requested by the vehicle, charging will not be started.

# 13.2 Power supply

## Power supply c-series

Rated supply voltage (Europe):	3 x 230 V / 400 V
Internal consumption:	ldling: 3 W, plugged in: 4.5 W, charging: 6.5 W
Pated current (variant dependent):	16 A / 20 A / 32 A 1-phase or 3-phase
Rated current (vanant-dependent).	Current limit adjustable via DIP switches: 8 A / 10 A / 13 A / 16 A / 20 A / 25 A / 32 A
Line frequency:	50 Hz
Mains forms:	TT / TN / IT
Power supply x-series	
Rated supply voltage (Europe):	3 x 230 V / 400 V
Internal consumption:	ldling: 4 W, plugged in: 5 W, charging: 7 W
Pated surrant (variant dependent):	16 A / 20 A / 32 A 1-phase or 3-phase
Rated current (variant-dependent):	Current limit adjustable via DIP switches: 8 A / 10 A / 13 A / 16 A / 20 A / 25 A / 32 A
Line frequency:	50 Hz
Mains forms:	TT / TN / IT
Power loss	
Socket:	20 W at 22 kW

# solaredge

Cable (4 m):	70 W at 22 kW
Cable (6 m):	100 W at 22 kW
Supply terminals	
Туре:	Spring-type terminal
Cable feed:	Top (surface), back side (flush)
Connection cross-section of the supply:	Minimum cross-section (depending on the cable and the type of installation)
• 16 A rated current:	5 x 2.5 mm <sup>2</sup>
• 32 A nominal current:	5 x 6.0 mm <sup>2</sup>
Cross section (cable):	0.2 – 10 mm <sup>2</sup>
AWG:	24 – 6
Stripping length:	12 mm
Temperature rating:	105 °C

# 13.3 Socket / cable

•	Type 2 standard socket: 32 A / 400 V AC in accordance with EN 62196-1 and VDE-AR-E 2623-2-2
Socket variants:	Type 2 standard socket: 32 A / 400 V AC in accordance with EN 62196-1 and VDE-AR-E 2623-2-2 with Shutter
• Cable versions:	Type 1 cable: up to 32 A / 230 V AC in accordance with EN 62196-1 and SAE-J1772
(For rating, see type plate on the cable) •	Type 2 cable: up to 32 A / 400 V AC in accordance with EN 62196-1 and VDE-AR-E 2623-2-2

# 13.4 Ambient conditions

Use:	Inside and outside area
Access limitations at set-up location:	Limited and unlimited access
Installation (stationary):	On the wall or on a floor-mounted column.
Operating temperature:	
• 16 A:	-25 °C to +50 °C (without direct sunlight)
• 32 A:	-25 °C to +40 °C (without direct sunlight)
Storage temperature:	-25 °C to +80 °C
Relative air humidity:	5 % to 95 % (non condensing)
Altitude:	max. 2000 m above sea level
Rate of temperature change:	max. 0.5 °C / min

# solar<mark>edge</mark>

Temperature behavior:

Automatic power reduction if overheating occurs

# 13.5 Interfaces

#### **Ethernet interface**

Data transfer rate: 10/100 Mi	pit/s
Ethernet2: RJ45 (for c	debug)

#### USB interface

Туре:	A, USB 2.0 (Hi-Speed)
Max. output power:	500 mA

#### Switch contact output

Туре:	External safety extra-low voltage, < 50 V AC (50/60 Hz), ≤ 24 V DC
Required current limitation:	< 0.5 A
Terminal type:	Spring-type terminal
Cross section:	0.08 – 4 mm <sup>2</sup>
AWG:	28 – 12
Stripping length:	8 mm

# 13.6 Optional equipment

#### **RFID** card

Туре:	MIFARE card / tag according to ISO 14443 or ISO 15693
WLAN / Wifi	
Туре:	IEEE 802.11 b,g,n, 2.4 GHz
Supported modes:	AP Ad-hoc-Mode, Client Mode

# 13.7 Calibratable energy meter

Meter type:	Electricity meter for active power
Measurement type:	Converter measurement
Non-return device:	Electronic
Minimum current:	0.15 A
Reference current:	3 A



Maximum current:	16 A / 20 A / 32 A
Pulse output in test mode:	10.000 pulses/kWh
Mechanical environmental conditions:	Class M1 (according to MID 2014/32/EU)
Electromagnetic environmental conditions:	Class E2 (according to MID 2014/32/EU)
Limits of the operating temperature for measuring accuracy:	-25 °C to +55 °C
Overflow of the counter:	99.999 kWh
MID	

Accuracy class:

Class B (according to EN 50470-1 / -3)

# 13.8 Dimensions and weight

Version with standard socket (Type 2)



Fig. 13-20: Dimensions in millimeters



## Version with charging cable and holder



Fig. 13-21: Dimensions in millimeters



#### **UKCA** 14

UKCA (UK Conformity Assessed) is the UK product marking required for certain products placed on the market in the UK (England, Wales and Scotland).

Authorised representative is:

KEBA Ltd.
Aston Court
Frederick Place
Kingsmead Business Park
High Wycombe
HP11 1JU
UK

Authorised representative to compile the technical file is KEBA Ltd.

#### **UKCA Declaration of conformity** 14.1

#### SIMPLIFIED UK DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY



KEBA Energy Automation GmbH Reindlstraße 51 4040 Linz AUSTRIA

Hereby, KEBA declares that the radio equipment type model (\*1) is in compliance with Radio Equipment EN Regulations 2017. The full text of the UK declaration of conformity is available at the following internet Address: (\*2)

Variants												
Form designation system												
Example:	<b>КС-Р30-</b> /	G //	S ///	2 /V	<b>4</b> V	00 VI	2 V//	2- VIII	M IX	0 X	0- XI	xx XII
1	Basic serie			КС-Р30		)Device generation (KeContact-P30)						
//	Basic type			G	GB / United Kingdom							
	Interface				s C	Socke Charg	t outlet ing cabl	e				



Variants						
IV	Design of interface	1 2 S	Type 1 Type 2 acc. EN 62196-2 Type 2 with Shutter			
V	Rated current	1 2 3 4	13 A 16 A 20 A 32 A			
VI	Cable	00 01 04 07	No cable 4 m cable 6 m cable 5.5 m cable			
VII	Electronics	1 2 3 B E H S U	b-series c-series a-series x-series, WLAN x-series, WLAN, LTE (4G) x-series, LTE (4G) x-series, WLAN/4G, w/o LM x-series, WLAN, w/o LM			
VIII	Electrics	1	1-phase with smooth residual d.c. detetection 3-phase			
IX	Metering	0 E L M	Not equipped Energy meter Calibratable electrical energy meter with national approval for additional device Active electrical energy meters			
Х	X2 functionality	0	Switch contact output			
XI	Authorisation	0 A P R	No authorisation RFID, PLC PLC RFID			
XII	Customer options	хх	Options for individual customer versions, not relevant for UK Declaration of Conformity			

www.keba.com/emobility-downloads



SolarEdge Technologies www.solaredge.com